
 

                                             
 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Planning & Zoning Board/LPA Meeting 
And Joint Meeting with the 

Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee 
Thursday, May 15, 2014, at 7:00 p.m. 

Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce – West Office 
13901 Southern Boulevard, Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 

P&Z Board 
Chair Dennis Lipp                 Town Manager Mark Kutney    
Vice Chair Robin Crawford                 Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Board Member Lawrence Corning               Town Planner Jim Fleishmann  
Board Member Keith Harris            
Board Member Grace Joyce                           
Alternate Member #1 Veronica Close 
Alternate Member #2 Byrnes Guillaume 
 
RETGAC BOARD 
Chair Keith Harris 
Vice-Chair Jo Siciliano 
Board Member Nina Corning 
Board Member Kathy Strehlow 
Council Liaison Tom Goltzené 
 

The Planning & Zoning Board meets on the 2nd Thursday of each month  
subject to the filing of applications. It also acts as the Local Planning Agency (LPA).  

 Items for each body are noted on the agenda. 
 

 
 

Mayor David Browning, Seat 4  
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel, Seat 1 
Councilman Tom Goltzené, Seat 5  
Councilman Jim Rockett, Seat 2 
Councilman Ryan Liang, Seat 3      

 
 
 
 
 TENTATIVE - 

SUBJECT TO 
REVISION 
 

1 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA – May 15, 2014 
 

 
Page 2 of 3 
P & Z/RETGAC Boards Agenda 05/15/2014 
 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 

 

1. OPENING 
 
a. Call to Order & Roll Call 

 
b. Approval of Agenda 

 
c. Appointment of Chair 

 
d. Appointment of Co-Chair 

 
2. MINUTES   
 

a. Planning and Zoning Board Minutes for Approval  -  April 10, 2014 
 
 
3. OLD BUSINESS - None  
 
  
4. NEW BUSINESS – None 
 

 
5. LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY 
 

Old Business  
 

a. ORDINDANCE NO. 2014-05 (Guns, Firearms, Gun Range Regulations) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE TOWN’S 
UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE TO ELIMINATE 
REGULATIONS RELATING TO GUNS, FIREARMS AND GUN RANGES 
TO ADDRESS STATE PREEMPTIONS OF THE REGULATION OF 
THESE SUBJECTS; PROVIDING FOR INTENT OF THE TOWN TO 
COMPLY WITH THE STATE’S PREEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

New Business -  None 
 

2 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA – May 15, 2014 
 

 
Page 3 of 3 
P & Z/RETGAC Boards Agenda 05/15/2014 
 

 
6. COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD 

 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT OF PLANNING AND ZONING MEETING 
 
 

CONVENE JOINT MEETING: 
 

1. Joint Workshop to discuss road issues particularly Okeechobee Boulevard and the use of 
roundabouts. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT OF JOUNT MEETING 
 
 
 
 

The next Planning and Zoning Board meeting is  
tentatively scheduled for June 12, 2014 

 
The next Roadway, Equestrian Trails, and Greenway Advisory Committee meeting is 

tentatively scheduled for June 25, 2014 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Comments Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the P&Z Board must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the P&Z Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, 
may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be 
based. Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at 
least 48 hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

3 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

2.a. Minutes 

April 10, 2014 

 

4 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Planning & Zoning Minutes 04/10/2014 
Page 1 of 7 
 

            
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Planning & Zoning Board/LPA Meeting 
Thursday, April 10, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce – West Office 
13901 Southern Boulevard, Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 

 
Chair Dennis Lipp                Town Manager Mark Kutney    
Vice Chair Robin Crawford                Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple   
Board Member Lawrence Corning              Town Planning Technician Braeden Garrett 
Board Member Keith Harris    Town Planning Consultant Jim Fleishmann  
Board Member Grace Joyce 
Alternate Member #1 Veronica Close 
Alternate Member #2 Byrnes Guillaume 
        
 
 

The Planning & Zoning Board meets on the 2nd Thursday of each month  
subject to the filing of applications. It also acts as the Local Planning Agency (LPA).  

 Items for each body are noted on the agenda. 
 

MINUTES 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call  
 
Chair Dennis Lipp called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m.  In attendance were Chair Lipp, 
Board Members Keith Harris, Grace Joyce, and Alternate Board Member Veronica Close. Vice-
Chair Robin Crawford, Board Member Lawrence Corning, and Alternate Board Member Byrnes 
Guillaume were not in attendance at this time.  Also present were Town Manager Mark Kutney, 
Town Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann, and Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple. 

 
 
 
 

Mayor David Browning, Seat 4  
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel, Seat 1 
Councilman Tom Goltzené, Seat 5  
Councilman Jim Rockett, Seat 2 
Councilman Ryan Liang, Seat 3      

 
 
 
 
 

5 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA –April 10, 2014 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Minutes 04/10/2014 
Page 2 of 7 
 

b. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion:  Board Member Close made a motion to approve the Agenda.  Board Member 
Joyce seconded the motion.  Upon vote the motion passed 4/0. 

 
2. MINUTES   
 
 a. Planning and Zoning Board Minutes for Approval – March 13, 2014 
   
Board Member Harris made a motion to approve the March 13, 2014, Minutes, as 
presented.  Board Member Close seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 4/0. 

 
3. OLD BUSINESS   

 
a. Discussion of Home Occupations / Home Businesses / Residential Enterprises 

  
Town Manager Kutney provided background and an update for discussion.  
 
Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant, brought a consolidation of the topics to discuss.  
There were four (4) basic parts of the handout: (1) key definitions from the ULDC (Unified Land 
Development Code) pertaining to the issue; (2) two was an excerpt from the AR (Agriculture 
Residential) District which shows home offices and residential enterprise are permitted accessory 
uses in the AR District, subject to a list of conditions listed in Article 80 of the ULDC; (3) 
conditions listed in Article 80 of the ULDC referencing home offices and residential enterprise; 
(4) ordinances from Port St. Lucie and Highlands County that might provide provisions which 
could be brought over to the Loxahatchee Groves Code.   

Alternate Board Member Guillaume arrived at 7:16 p.m. 
 

Board Member Joyce questioned as to the whereabouts of the extensive draft report the Planning 
and Zoning Board prepared for Town Council.  She felt this report should be resubmitted to 
Council rather than prepare something new, and eliminate additional waste of time and 
resources. 
 
Motion:  Board Member Joyce made a motion to resubmit the original draft report to the 
Town Council, and hopes it will not be sent back to the Planning Board.  Board Member 
Harris seconded the motion, and asked for discussion. 

 
The Board Members discussed with Mr. Fleischmann what additional information was being 
offered and if Council had specific directions.  
 
Jim Fleischmann suggested three (3) items for the Board to consider if there were going to be 
any further discussions; and those are employees, sales of goods and services, and customers. 

 

6 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA –April 10, 2014 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Minutes 04/10/2014 
Page 3 of 7 
 

Board Member Joyce stated that decision has already been made and there was nothing new that 
would change her mind.  The board tried to help the gun person, and at this point she feels 
Council has to step up to the plate and make a decision. 
 
Board Member Close referencing the three (3) items Mr. Fleischmann brought up for discussion 
felt those items are not appropriate.  
 
Chair Lipp told the Board to vote as they see fit, and he handed out a listing of home 
occupational language for reference. 

  
Members of the Board discussed the constant lack of indecision on items coming from Council.  
 
Board Member Harris felt that it was during the September 12, 2013, Planning and Zoning 
Meeting that the Board turned this item down. 
 
Board Member Joyce restated her motion that the Board not re-review this item or that the 
Board’s position on the Home Occupations remains the same as it was during the Planning 
and Zoning Board Meeting of September 12, 2013. Board Member Harris agreed with his 
second.   

 
Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 
 
Chair Lipp requested the previous report be used for backup in the presentation to Town Council.  

 
4. NEW BUSINESS – None 

 
5. LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY 
 

a. OLD BUSINESS - None 
 

b. NEW BUSINESS    
 

1)   ORDINANCE NO. 2014-04  (Livestock Waste – Property Owners) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN 
THE TOWN; AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE BY 
AMENDING PART III ENTITLED “SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 50 
ENTITLED “PUBLIC NUISANCES” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 50-035 TO BE 
ENTITLED “USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE;” PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; 
PROVIDING THAT THE USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE IS A PUBLIC NUISANCE 
EXCEPT AS PROVIDED BY THIS SECTION; PROVIDING FOR REGISTRATION 
AND PERMITS, REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS ON THE DELIVERY AND 
USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE; PROVIDING FOR REPORTING AND NOTICE 

7 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA –April 10, 2014 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Minutes 04/10/2014 
Page 4 of 7 
 

REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR  CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Board Member Close requested that Staff provide backup reports when items come before the 
Board. 

Town Manage Kutney provided background on the livestock waste hauling Ordinances (2014-03 
(haulers), and 2014-04 (property owners).   
 
Adverse effects of the manure dumping were discussed.  
 
Board Member Crawford arrived at 7:48 p.m.  
 
The Board Members made the following corrections/notations within Ordinance No. 2014-04: 

1. Page 3 of 12, A.4.  Wording should state, “within a period of ninety (90) days” (instead 
of a period of 30 to 90 days). 
 

2. Page 4 of 12, A.11. Public Nuisance; that section needed to be more specific. (Town 
Manager Kutney stated this was the definition in Black’s Law) 
 

3. Page 5 of 12, F.1. the definition for bona fide agriculture was already covered under 
number two (2) definitions. 
 

4. Page 5 of 12, referencing when owners advise the Town – the suggestion was “at time 
of application”. 
 

5. Page 6 of 12, number 6, change “City” to “Town”. 
 

6. Page 7 of 12, I, add………. does not dump livestock waste. 
 

7. Page 9 of 12, O, the reference to Delivery Records should be a little less specific. 
 

8. Page 9 of 12, Q, change reference from property owner to property. (use property 
control number) 
 

9. Page 10 of 12, T.1. Start fee schedule at: First Offense $350; Second Offense $400; 
Third Offense $450; and All Additional Offenses will remain at $500. 
 

8 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA –April 10, 2014 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Minutes 04/10/2014 
Page 5 of 7 
 

10. Page 11 of 12, 4. U. add “Town” to ….State, County and Town regulations. 
 

11. Page 5 of 12, F.1. (7th line down) How does the Town determine a “good faith” effort 
and should there be a time frame. (Suggestion was to provide documentation to the 
town that a bona fide agriculture designation has been obtained/applied for.) 
 

12. Page 7 of 12, G. If haulers do not comply, their permit is immediately revoked. 
 

13. Page 9 of 12, L.  What are the remedies if crops can’t be planted after spreading?  
Add if non-compliant designations that permit will be revoked and no new permit 
will be issued (maybe for ninety (90) days).  
 

14. Formatting preference beginning with page 4 of 12, Put items in order of importance:  
Letter E should become C; Letter F becomes D; Letter C would become E; Letter D 
would become F. 

Motion:  Board member Harris made a motion for approval of Ordinance No 2014-04, as 
amended.  Board member Joyce seconded the motion.  Upon vote motion passed 5/0. 
 

2)   ORDINANCE NO, 2014-05 (Guns, Firearms, Gun Range Regulations) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE TO ELIMINATE REGULATIONS RELATING TO GUNS, FIREARMS AND 
GUN RANGES TO ADDRESS STATE PREEMPTIONS OF THE REGULATION OF 
THESE SUBJECTS; PROVIDING FOR INTENT OF THE TOWN TO COMPLY WITH 
THE STATE’S PREEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Manager Kutney deferred the explanation of Ordinance No. 2014-05 to Town Planning 
Consultant Jim Fleischmann who handled the history.   
 
Town Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann stated the history of Ordinance No. 2014-05 was 
basically stated in the Whereas Clauses number two (2) and three (3).  Council had directed staff 
to take out of the Code any reference of gun/shooting ranges. Page 3 of 6, under Section 25-015 
– Permitted Uses within the Commercial Low Zone, Shooting Range Indoor was removed and 
replaced with Archery Range.  Page 4 of 6, 35-015 Permitted Uses within the Parks and 
Recreation Zone– Gun or was removed and replaced with Archery Range.  Page 5 of 6, Section 
80-040, all of the reference to gun/gun ranges were stricken. Page 5 of 6, Under Section 95-010, 
the reference to guns was stricken.   According to the Town’s Unified Land Development Code 
(ULDC), all proposed changes need to be sent to the Planning and Zoning Board. 
 

9 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA –April 10, 2014 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Minutes 04/10/2014 
Page 6 of 7 
 

The Board Members made the following corrections/notations within Ordinance No. 2014-05: 
 
Board Member Joyce stated she understands State Statutes, and printed out the section relevant 
to discussion.  She did want to know who asked for these changes and did the Town Attorney 
agree. 
 
Mr. Fleischmann was not sure if the Town Attorney agreed, he followed directions. 
 
Board Member Joyce when reading the Statutes; Section 790.33 actually refers to the sale of 
guns and ammunition and then it lists all things pertaining to the sales, and its exceptions.  She 
would like to recommend the Town Attorney look at this, and section 790.333 and have him 
determine what would be the unintended consequences of removing this from the Town’s Code.  
Board Member Joyce does not feel the Town is in violation of that particular State Statute as it 
was written, maybe just an misinterpretation.  She would like the Town Attorney to review this, 
and made a determination if that is possible to request, as she feels there is not a need to change 
the code.   
 
 Town Manager Kutney stated if that was the Board’s recommendation the Staff would pass it 
on. 

Board Member Joyce is not sure this is a necessary amendment justification that the State Statute 
said is only referring to the preemption of a municipality as it relates to the sale of guns. 
 
Board Member Joyce felt the Board should table the Ordinance No. 2014-05 and have the Town 
Attorney look at the Statute to see in fact if this is a change that needs to be done. 
 
Chair Lipp stated the statute is going back and forth.  He read from the Attorney General 
Opinion page four (4), which is his opinion the Town is not doing anything wrong.  
 
Town Manager Kutney answering a question from Board Member Joyce as to the concerns ATF 
(Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms) had; he reported that ATF was okay with the residential 
enterprise unless the individual was receiving foot traffic, this was against the Town Code, then 
ATF had a problem with the issue. 
 
Board Member Close felt that the Town Attorney should review the Ordinance and it should 
come back to the Planning and Zoning Board before going on to Council.  
 
The Board discussed the various proposed changes to Ordinance No. 2014-05, and the possibility 
that the Town Attorney may need to review Ordinance No. 2014-05 and compare to State 
Statutes 790.33 and 79.333; and the consequences of removing these items from the Town’s 
Code. 

 

10 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA –April 10, 2014 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Minutes 04/10/2014 
Page 7 of 7 
 

Motion:  Board Member Close made a motion to table Ordinance No. 2014-05, have the 
Staff/Town Attorney make corrections, and then bring the Ordinance back for Board 
review.  Board Member Joyce seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

 
  

6. COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD 
 

There were no additional comments from Staff. 
 
There were no additional comments from Board Members. 

 
 

7.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business before the Planning and Zoning Board, Chair Lipp adjourned the 
meeting at 8:33 p.m. 

 
 
__________________________________                         _________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk    Dennis Lipp, Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved during the_____________________Planning and Zoning Meeting. 

11 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

5.a. Old Business 

Ordinance No. 2014-05 

(Guns, Firearms, Gun Range Regulations) 

 

12 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 2014-05 Guns 04-02-2014  {00011396.DOCX }  
Page 1 of 6 

 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-05 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE TOWN’S 
UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE TO ELIMINATE 
REGULATIONS RELATING TO GUNS, FIREARMS AND GUN RANGES 
TO ADDRESS STATE PREEMPTIONS OF THE REGULATION OF 
THESE SUBJECTS; PROVIDING FOR INTENT OF THE TOWN TO 
COMPLY WITH THE STATE’S PREEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Section 970.33, Florida Statutes, preempts to the state the field of 

regulation of firearms and ammunition, except for zoning ordinances “that encompass firearms 

businesses” so long as they are not intended to restrict or prohibit the sale of firearms and 

ammunition as a means of regulating such; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 790.333, Florida Statutes, preempts to the state the field of 

regulation of firearms and ammunition use at sport shooting and training ranges; and,  

WHEREAS, the Florida Attorney General has opined that the preemption in Section 

790.333, Florida Statutes, includes zoning; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 790.33, Florida Statutes, provides substantial penalties for any 

willful intrusion into the state’s preemption on the regulation of firearms and ammunitions, 

including fines of up to $5,000, termination of employment or removal from office, and damages 

of up to $100,000.00; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town’s Unified Land Development Code contains zoning regulations 

relating to shooting and gun ranges, the goal of which was not to restrict gun and ammunition 

sales and use, but to provide use and development standards for such uses; and,  

13 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 2014-05 Guns 04-02-2014  {00011396.DOCX }  
Page 2 of 6 

WHEREAS, the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, believes it is in the best interest 

of the Town to remove all references to guns, firearms, and gun and shooting ranges in the 

Unified Land Development Code in order to avoid the potential of conflict with state law, and to 

defer to the state for regulations of such pursuant to the state’s preemptions as evidenced by 

Sections 790.33 and 790.333, Florida Statutes.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption 

hereof.      

Section 2. Part II, entitled “Zoning Districts,” Article 25 entitled “Commercial 

Zoning Districts,” Section 25-015, entitled “Permitted Uses,” of the Town’s Unified Land 

Development Code, is amended as follows: 

Section 25-015. - Permitted uses. 
Plots located in the Commercial Low and Commercial Low Office zoning districts may be used 
for one or more of the following uses.  

Principal Uses  Commercial Low  
(CL)  

Commercial Low  
Office 
(CLO)  

Adult Entertainment Permitted subject to 
Article 20 

Not Permitted 

Arcade, Video Permitted Not Permitted 

Automobile Repair Garage Permitted Not Permitted 

Bank or Financial Institution Permitted Permitted 

Bar, Lounge, Tavern or Pub Permitted Not Permitted 

Barber Shop, Beauty or Nail Salon Permitted Not Permitted 

Pool Hall Permitted Not Permitted 

Car Wash, Self-Service or Automated Permitted  Not Permitted 

14 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 2014-05 Guns 04-02-2014  {00011396.DOCX }  
Page 3 of 6 

Catering or Food Service Delivery Permitted Not Permitted 

Child Care Center Permitted Not Permitted 

Commercial Animal Manure Mgmt. Not Permitted Not Permitted 

Commercial Chipping and Mulching Permitted subject to 
Article 80 

Not Permitted 

Convenience Store Permitted Not Permitted 

Dance/Night Club Permitted Not Permitted 

Day Labor Hiring Center Permitted w/Special 
Exception 

Not Permitted 

Delicatessen Permitted Not Permitted 

Theater or Auditorium Permitted Not Permitted 

Dry Cleaning or Laundry Service Permitted Not Permitted 

Employment Agency Not Permitted Not Permitted 

Essential Services and Utilities Permitted Permitted 

Exhibition of Wildlife Pets Permitted subject to 
Article 80 

Not Permitted 

Gasoline Station Permitted Not Permitted 

Shooting Range, Indoor  Archery Range Permitted subject to 
Article 80 

Not Permitted 

Hotel Permitted Not Permitted 

Holiday Wayside Stand Permitted subject to 
Article 80 

Permitted subject to 
Article 80 

Laboratory (e.g., medical, dental, research) Permitted Permitted 

Offices (e.g., business, professional, medical) Permitted Permitted 

Package Liquor, Beer or Wine Store Permitted Not Permitted 

Outdoor Events Permitted subject to 
Article 80 and to a 
Special Exception 

Permitted subject to 
Article 80 and to a 
Special Exception 

Retail Plant or Produce Sales Permitted Not Permitted 

Restaurant, Fast Food Permitted Not Permitted 

Restaurant, Full Service Permitted Permitted 

Restaurant, Take Out Only Permitted Permitted 

Retail Services Permitted Not Permitted 

Retail Store Permitted Not Permitted 

15 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 2014-05 Guns 04-02-2014  {00011396.DOCX }  
Page 4 of 6 

Commercial Recreation (e.g., batting cages, 
rink) 

Permitted Not Permitted 

Veterinary Clinic or Hospital Permitted Not Permitted 

Warehouse, Self Storage Permitted Not Permitted 

Wireless Communication Facilities Permitted Permitted 

Adult Day Care Permitted Permitted 

Schools, Public or Private Permitted Not Permitted 

Gym or Fitness Center Permitted Permitted 
 

Section 3. Part II, entitled “Zoning Districts,” Article 35 entitled “Parks and 

Recreation Zoning Districts,” Section 35-015, entitled “Permitted Uses,” of the Town’s Unified 

Land Development Code, is amended as follows: 

Section 35-015. - Permitted uses. 
Plots located in the Parks and Recreation zoning district may be used for one or more of the 
following specified uses.  

Principal Uses  Parks and Recreation  
Gun or Archery Range Permitted subject to Article 80 

Boat Ramp, Fishing Pier and Dock Permitted 

Botanical Garden Permitted 

Walking and Biking Trail Permitted 

Essential Services Permitted 

Nature Trail Permitted 

Outdoor Events Permitted subject to Article 80 

Lake or Pond Permitted 

Public Park Permitted 
 
Section 4. Part III, entitled Supplemental Regulations,” Article 80, entitled 

“Conditional Use,” Section 80-040, entitled “Archery and gun ranges,” of the Town’s Unified 

Land Development Code, is amended as follows:  

  

16 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 2014-05 Guns 04-02-2014  {00011396.DOCX }  
Page 5 of 6 

Section 80-040. - Archery and gun ranges. 

Target areas for archery and gun ranges shall provide sufficient separation and 
barriers sufficient to preclude any intrusion of such activities (including noise above 
nuisance levels) upon adjacent properties. All gun ranges shall be within a building 
located on a parcel that has a land use designation of Commercial Low Retail and shall 
also conform to the Best Management Practices for Environmental Stewardship of 
Florida Shooting Ranges as outlined by the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection.  

 Section 5. Part IV, entitled “Parking and Loading, Access and Subdivision, Sight 

Distance,” Division I, entitled “Space Requirements, Size and Use, Section 95-010, entitled 

“Minimum parking space requirements,” of the Town’s Unified Land Development Code, is 

amended as follows: 

Section 95-010. - Minimum parking space requirements. 

The minimum parking requirements for each use is outlined below, however, for uses not 
specifically listed, the parking requirements for the most similar use shall be used as determined 
by the Town Manager. When the number of required parking spaces results in a fractional space, 
any such fraction shall require a full parking space. In the case of mixed uses (not including 
shopping centers), the total requirement for parking spaces shall be the sum of the various uses 
computed separately. In stadiums, sports arenas, religious facilities, bars and other places of 
assembly in which occupants utilize benches, pews, stools or other similar seating facilities, 
every 20 lineal inches of such seating shall be counted as one seat for the purpose of computing 
parking requirements. Every building, use or structure which complies with the parking 
requirements of this article may provide additional parking spaces as needed.  

 (E)   Recreational uses:  

Uses  Minimum Parking Requirements  
Gun or Archery Range One parking space per target 

position 

Other Recreational 
Uses 

Determined by agency facilitating 
and maintaining the use 

 
Section 6:  It is the intent of the Town Council that the Town’s ordinances and 

Unified Land Development Code be interpreted and administered consistent with the state’s 

preemptions of the regulation of fields of guns and ammunition, and gun ranges. 

Section 7. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, and all Resolutions or parts of 

17 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 2014-05 Guns 04-02-2014  {00011396.DOCX }  
Page 6 of 6 

Resolutions, in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 7:  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any 

person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 

applications of this Ordinance that can be given affect without the invalid provision or 

application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Section 8:  This Ordinance shall become effective as provided by law.   

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ________ DAY OF 
__________, 2014 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
____ DAY OF _____________, 2014        
 
            
       TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
       FLORIDA 
 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney                          ________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
 
 
 
 

18 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



19 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



20 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



21 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



22 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



23 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



25 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



26 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



27 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Joint Workshop 

Roundabout Discussion 

 

28 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



29 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



30 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



31 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



32 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



33 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



34 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



35 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



36 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



37 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



38 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



39 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



40 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



41 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



42 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



43 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



44 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



45 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



46 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



47 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



48 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



49 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



50 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



51 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



52 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



53 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



54 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



55 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



56 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



57 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



58 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



59 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



60 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



61 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



62 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



63 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



64 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



65 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



66 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



67 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



68 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



69 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



70 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



71 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



72 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



73 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



74 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



75 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



76 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



77 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



78 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



79 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



80 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



81 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



82 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



83 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



84 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



85 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



86 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



87 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



88 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



89 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



90 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



91 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



92 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



93 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



94 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



95 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



96 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



97 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



98 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



99 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



100 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



101 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



102 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



103 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



104 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



105 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



106 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



107 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



108 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



109 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



110 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



111 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



112 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



113 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



114 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



115 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



116 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



117 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



118 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



119 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



120 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



121 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



122 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



123 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



124 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



125 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



126 of 126  P&Z - RETGAC Joint Workshop Agenda 05/15/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 




